
  Posted 9/29/2016 

 

Agenda 
Board of Adjustment 

Regular Meeting October 4, 2016 
City Hall Council Chambers - 6:00 PM (televised) 

 
1. Call to order 

2. Review & adopt/amend agenda 

3. Approval of the September 6, 2016 stated meeting minutes 

4. Public Hearing - Variance request from Peter and Jodi Hogan for property located at 3200 
Central Point Road to vary from the City’s Floodplain Regulations, Chapter 151 of the City 
Code, to construct a bathroom within the tuck under garage. 

5. Public Hearing - Variance request from Ken and Joyce Willers for property located 415 N 
Franklin Street to expand an existing non-conforming structure by adding a second story 
addition to the home and adding a second story deck that would encroach into the required 
front setback area. 

6. Miscellaneous discussion 

7. Adjourn   

http://docs.ci.lake-city.mn.us:81/SirePub/agdocs.aspx?doctype=agenda&itemid=6061


 

BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 
REGULAR MEETING 

TUESDAY, SEPTEMBER 6, 2016 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL 

 
 
Members present: Mark Nichols, Larry Foster, Ken Smith, Tom Dwelle, Joe Kjelland, Don 

Grundman 
 
Members absent: Jerry Hill 
 
Others present: Assistant Planning Director Megan Smith, Council Liaison Andru Peters, 

Ben Boege, Jim Geisler 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Nichols called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. with a quorum present. 
 
REVIEW AND ADOPT/AMEND AGENDA 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY KJELLAND TO ADOPT THE AGENDA AS PRESENTED, 
SECONDED BY GRUNDMAN. ALL AYES. 
 
APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 2, 2016 STATED MEETING MINUTES  
A MOTION WAS MADE BY FOSTER TO APPROVE THE MARCH 2, 2016 STATED 
MEETING MINUTES AS PRESENTED.  SECOND BY GRUNDMAN.  ALL AYES. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE REQUEST SUBMITTED BY HEARTH AND HOME 
TECHNOLOGIES TO WIDEN AN ACCESS DRIVE, LOCATED ALONG W. MONROE ST. 
FROM 36 FEET TO 70 FEET, AS MEASURED FROM THE CURB OPENING. 
Nichols introduced the public hearing.  The Board was to consider an application for a variance. 
Hearth and Home Technologies, 800 W. Jefferson St. Lake City, MN 55041, has submitted an 
application for a variance applicable to the subject property, as abbreviated:  ALL OF BLOCK 
190 AND PART OF VACATED MADISON STREET AND NORTH 8TH STREET, OF THE 
ORIGINAL PLAT OF LAKE CITY, WABASHA COUNTY, MINNESOTA. 
 
The request is to vary from the City’s access drive width requirements of Section 155.70 of the 
City’s Zoning Ordinance, by proposing to widen an existing driveway access point located along 
West Monroe Street, from 36 feet to 70 feet, as measured from the curb openings. This amount 
exceeds the City’s width limit at the curb by 35 feet. 
 
Megan Smith reviewed the staff report. The request submitted was to widen an existing access 
drive off of West Monroe Street to provided truck access to Hearth Technologies East building 
loading area along the rear of the building, facing the railroad tracks.   
 
Trucks accessing this loading area, along the rear of the building, were having difficulty backing 
into the site due to the narrow turning radius caused by the existing curb opening, and the concrete 
median that separates the traffic lanes of West Monroe Street in front of the railroad crossing. 
 
Mrs. Smith addressed the three conditions of approval which are found on Resolution BA16-02 
Foster asked if the applicants would be responsible for all of the improvements. Mrs. Smith said 
yes. 
 



 
Board of Adjustment 

September 6, 2016 
Page 2 of 2 

 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY GRUNDMAN AND SECOND BY FOSTER TO OPEN THE 
PUBLIC HEARING.  ALL AYES. 
 
Jim Geisler, 806 North 7th Street, addressed the Board.  Geisler asked if there was a reason the 
median was placed on Monroe Street.  Mrs. Smith noted the median was originally placed as part 
of the Monroe Street Railroad Crossing improvement to meet the federal minimum standards. 
 
Andru Peters addressed the Board noting the design of the Monroe Street Crossing was a conscious 
design to conform to the requirements for a whistle free crossing zone.    
 
Ben Boege, on the behalf of Hearth & Home Technologies, addressed the Board.  Boege informed 
the Board the main reason for the request was to widen the driveway to be able to get the trucks in 
and out of that area noting one of the venders supplier refused to deliver product due to the 
narrowness of the driveway access.   
 
Nichols asked how many trucks used this driveway access area.  Boege thought it would be hard 
to say how many trucks they had per day.  He explained this access was the only access to this side 
of the plant and any large deliveries would need to be brought to this area. 
 
There was a short discussion on the City trail located within the boulevard along the property line 
and the requirement that the trail be reinforced with concrete in the area where the curb expansion 
was proposed to ensure that the trail does not deteriorate from truck traffic 
 
A MOTION WAS MADE BY GRUNDMAN AND SECOND BY DWELLE TO CLOSE THE 
PUBLIC HEARING.  ALL AYES. 
 
Board member Smith asked if sidewalk for all of the area to be widened would be improved. Mr. 
Boege said the trail would be upgraded to concrete. 
 
MOTION WAS MADE BY FOSTER TO ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. BA16-02, TO 
APPROVING A VARIANCE FROM THE CITY’S ACCESS DRIVE REGULATIONS FOR 
HEARTH & HOME TECHNOLOGIES, ALLOWING A 70 FOOT WIDE ACCESS DRIVE 
OPENING OFF OF WEST MONROE STREET IN LAKE CITY. GRUNDMAN SECOND THE 
MOTION.  ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN WITH ALL IN MEMBERS VOTING AYE.  
MOTION PASSED. 
 
ADJOURN 
THE MEETING WAS ADJOURNED AT 6:25 P.M. 
 
 
 
 ____________________________________ 
   Mark Nichols, Vice Chair 
 
 
Submitted by:  Megan Smith 
Assistant Planning Director of Planning & Community Development 



 

1 

FROM THE OFFICE OF PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
TO:  City of Lake City Board of Adjustment 
 
FROM:  Megan Smith, Assistant Planning Director  
 
SUBJECT: Variance Request, Peter and Jodi Hogan, 3200 Central Point Road 
 
DATE:  Meeting of October 4, 2016 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Notice of Public Hearing 
2. Application Materials 
3. Building Plan – Cross Section View with Elevations 
4. Site Grading Plan  
5. Draft Resolution No. BA16-03 

 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
 
A request has been submitted by Peter and Jodi Hogan, owners of the vacant lot at 3200 
Central Point Road.  The Hogan’s are proposing to construct a new home on the lot and are 
requesting a variance from the City’s Floodplain regulations to construct a bathroom in their 
tuck under garage, below the City’s regulatory flood protection elevation.   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION:  
 
Action Being Requested: A variance from the City’s Floodplain Regulations, Chapter 151.  
 
60-Day Rule: The application was filed on September 2, 2016; therefore the City must take 
action on or before October 31, 2016.  
 
Public Hearing: Required: Yes; Notification: A total of 12 surrounding property owners within 
350 feet of the subject property were notified.  The Notice of Public Hearing was published in 
The Lake City Graphic on September 22, 2016.   
 
 
 



2 

PLANNING AND ZONING REVIEW: 
 
Land Use: Residential 
 
Zoning:  (MDR) Medium Density Residential 
 
Overlay Zoning:  1) Shoreland Overlay district of both Lake Pepin and Miller Creek; 2) Floodplain 
regulations for both Miller Creek and the Mississippi River. 
     
Surrounding Land Uses: Single family residential and Public Open Space (Hok Si La Park)  
 
Lot Dimensions: 60’ x 170’   
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
 
The site previously contained a home that was demolished in the fall of 2001. In April of 2001, 
the City was inundated with a substantial flood event.    
 
Mr. and Mrs. Hogan purchased 3200 Central Point Road and subdivided the lot into two equally 
sized smaller lots.  This was approved by the City in February of 2016.   The Hogan’s will use the 
address of 3200 Central Point Road and are building a home on Parcel B, as shown on the 
attached site/grading plan. Parcel A is currently a vacant lot also owned by the Hogan’s. 
 
The site’s current elevations range from approximately 678’ where the house pad is located, to 
675 at the rear property line, and 676’ at the front property line adjunct to the beach.  The 
ordinary high water line of Lake Pepin is 672’. These elevations are NAVD 88.   
 
The City’s regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE) is found in the floodplain ordinance, and 
cannot be lower than one foot above the elevation of the regional flood.  The regional flood is 
set from a 1965 flood event, and is 683.3 feet (NGVD 1912).  This elevation, plus one foot, is 
684.3, which is the required elevation for all raised structures.   
 
FLOOD INFORMATION: 
 
The Mississippi River in Lake City has reached flood stage, or moderate flooding, at least 10 
times since 1951, most recently in 2001.  Since 1965, the City’s has reached major flood stage 
three times. For reference, flood stage is a term that generally references the number of feet 
above a specific reference point.  In this case, from a gauge that is located at the Lake City 
Marina.    
 
 
 



3 

Flood Categories (in feet)*  
Major Flood Stage  20 feet 
Moderate Flood Stage 18 feet 
Flood Stage   16 feet (677.1’ U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 1912 Datum) 
Action Stage   13 feet 

 
Historical Crest - Top 10 by severity* 
1) 22.18 ft on 04/19/1965 (683.3 feet in NGVD 1912) 
2) 20.20 ft on 04/17/1969 
3) 20.13 ft on 04/16/2001 
4) 19.17 ft on 04/18/1952 
5) 19.06 ft on 04/16/1951 
6) 18.95 ft on 04/11/1997 
7) 17.60 ft on 05/01/1975 
8) 17.45 ft on 06/28/1993 
9) 17.40 ft on 04/06/1967 
10) 17.17 ft on 04/06/1986 

 
*Charts data provided by NOAA 
 
The City participates in FEMA’s National Flood Insurance Program and must meet minimum 
standards outlined by the federal government.  In part, this means that all permanent 
structures built on 3200 Central Point Road must be elevated one foot above the base flood 
elevation, or to at least 681 feet (NAVD 1988), which is the 100 year flood level determined by 
the FEMA flood maps.  This is a federal minimum.  However, the City has adopted a more 
restrictive base flood elevation, using data from the 1965 flood event.  This number is 683.3 
(NGVD 1912) which is in a different datum than FEMA’s uses.  After consulting the DNR, and 
Dave Zink with the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration (NOAA) staff found that 
there is no reliable way to convert data universally.  Instead, each reference point that is used 
to benchmark each datum elevation must be found and the difference between those 
benchmarks can be used to determine the difference in elevation.   
 
VARIANCE ANALYSIS:   
 
The Hogan’s have requested a variance from the City’s elevation requirements.  Note that the 
City cannot allow a variance request below the FEMA elevation, and that a request of that 
nature would be handled by FEMA directly.   The increase in elevation that the City’s requires 
above the FEMA 100 year elevation is approximately 2 feet.   
 
The City’s Floodplain ordinance allows three very specific uses of space in areas that are built 
below the regulatory flood protection elevation (RFPE): 1) parking of vehicles 2) building access, 
and 3) storage.  In addition, areas below the RFPE must be design to internally flood and must 



4 

be flood proofed in accordance with the MN building code.   A bathroom does not fit into one 
of these categories, and generally cannot be designed to be flood proofed.   
 
In the application materials, the Hogan’s state that the bathroom floor will be constructed at 
682’ feet.  Please review the attached variance checklist included with the agenda materials 
that was submitted by the Hogan’s with the application.   
 
Upon review of the variance applicant and checklist, City Staff is not recommending approval of 
the variance due to the applicant’s inability to meet all the required criteria, specifically the 
criteria of number 2 and number 4.   Below is the staff’s review analysis for each required 
finding: 
 

1. Practical Difficulty.  True or False: Is the property owner proposing to use the property 
in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control?   

 
True.  The Mr. and Mrs. Hogan’s request to install a bathroom in a tuck under garage is 
a reasonable request for a home that must be elevated.  
 

2. Unique circumstances.   True or False: Is the plight of the landowner due to 
circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner? 

 
False: The circumstances were created by the applicant by purchasing and developing 
property in a floodplain.  The City has clearly outlined the elevation requirements for the 
home with the issuance of a conditional use permit to build an elevated structure in a 
flood fringe.   The circumstances for this lot are no difference than others located within 
the same flood zone. 
 

3. Essential Character. True or False: Will the essential character of the locality, or 
neighborhood, be maintained if the variance is granted?  
 
True: The character of the residential development along Central Point Road would not 
change if the variance was granted.   

 
4. Purpose and Intent of the Ordinance.  True or False: If granted, is the variance in 

harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance?  
 
False: The purpose of the floodplain ordinance to promote the public health, safety, and 
general welfare of the community, and to minimize losses.  The City adopted a more 
restrictive elevation requirement in response to the devastation and damage that a 
major flood caused in 1965.  The purpose of floodplain regulations, is in part to minimize 
loss, and by allowing improvements to structures below the regulatory flood protection 



5 

elevation, the City is knowingly allowing improvements in areas susceptible to a major 
flood event.   
 

5. Comprehensive Plan. True or False: If granted, is the variance are consistent with the 
comprehensive plan?  
 
True:  The variance request can be considered consistent with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan, which depicts residential land uses in this location.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the Board of Adjustment adopt Resolution No. BA16-03, denying a variance 
request to install a bathroom below the regulatory flood protection elevation for property 
located at 3200 Central Point Road, by making the findings included therein.   

 

 



















 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. BA16-03 
 

CITY OF LAKE CITY, MINNESOTA 
 

A RESOLUTION DENYING A VARIANCE FROM THE CITY OF LAKE 
CITY’S FLOODPLAIN REGULATIONS FOR 3200 CENTRAL POINT ROAD, 

LAKE CITY, MINNESOTA 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake City is a municipal corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and 

 WHEREAS, Peter and Jodi Hogan, (the “Applicants”), 3200 Central Point Road, 
have submitted an application to the City of Lake City (the “City”) for a variance to build 
a bathroom in their tuck under garage located below the City’s regulatory flood protection 
elevation; and  

 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as: LOT 4, B. J. LOSS'S 
SUBDIVISION, ACCORDING TO THE RECORDED PLAT THEREOF, ON FILE IN 
GOODHUE COUNTY MINNESOTA; EXCEPT: THE NORTHEASTERLY 60.00 FEET 
THEREOF; and  

  WHEREAS, the procedures to apply for, and obtain a variance as found in the 
Lake City Zoning Ordinance Section 155.39 have been met; and 

 WHEREAS, notice has been published, mailed and posted pursuant to the Lake 
City Zoning Ordinance Section 155.39 (D); and 

 WHEREAS, the Lake City Board of Adjustment held a public hearing on said 
matter on October 4, 2016; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, based on the testimony elicited and information received, 
the Board of Adjustment makes the following: 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

FINDINGS 
 

The City of Lake City has found the following findings in its evaluation of the application 
for a variance:  

1. Practical Difficulty has been found to be true and correct. The property owner is 
proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official 
control. Mr. and Mrs. Hogan’s request to install a bathroom in a tuck under garage is 
a reasonable request for a home that must be elevated.  
 

2. Unique circumstances has not been found in this case. The plight of the landowner is 
due to their own circumstances, and was created by the landowner.  The circumstances 
were created by the applicant by purchasing and developing property in a floodplain.  
The City has clearly outlined the elevation requirements for the home with the issuance 
of a conditional use permit to build an elevated structure in a flood fringe.   The 
circumstances for this lot are no difference than others located within the same flood 
zone. 
 

3. Essential Character has been found to be true and correct.  The essential character 
of the locality, or neighborhood, be maintained if the variance is granted. The 
character of the residential development along Central Point Road would not change 
if the variance was granted.   

 
4. Purpose and Intent of the Ordinance has not been found in this case.   The 

variance, if granted, would not be in keeping with the purpose and intent of the 
ordinance. The purpose of the floodplain ordinance is to promote the public health, 
safety, and general welfare of the community, and to minimize losses.  The City 
adopted a more restrictive elevation requirement in response to the devastation and 
damage that a major flood caused in 1965.  The purpose of floodplain regulations, is 
in part to minimize loss, and by allowing improvements to structures below the 
regulatory flood protection elevation, the City is knowingly allowing improvements in 
areas susceptible to a major flood event.   
 

5. Comprehensive Plan compliance has been found to be true and correct. 
The variance request can be considered consistent with the City’s Comprehensive 
Plan, which depicts residential land uses in this location.   

 

CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION 

Based on the foregoing, the Applicant’s request for a variance has been denied based on 
the City’s findings listed above, which state that only three for the required five findings 
of fact needed for  granting a variance have been met. 

 

 



 
 

Passed and duly adopted this 4th day of October, 2016, by the City of Lake City, Minnesota 
Board of Adjustment. 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
 Jerry Hill, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kari Schreck, City Clerk 
 



 

1 

FROM THE OFFICE OF PLANNING & COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

 
TO:  City of Lake City Board of Adjustment 
 
FROM:  Megan Smith, Assistant Planning Director  
 
SUBJECT: Variance Request from Ken and Joyce Willers for property at 415 N Franklin St. 
 
DATE:  Meeting of October 4, 2016 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
 

1. Notice of Public Hearing 
2. Application Materials 
3. Draft Resolution No. BA16-04 

 
SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 
 
A request has been submitted by Ken and Joyce Willers, to expand a non-conforming structure 
located at 415 N. Franklin Street in Lake City.  The applicants are proposing to add a second 
story to the existing one story home, and to secondly add a balcony off the new second story 
into the front setback area.   This is a two part variance application.   
 
GENERAL INFORMATION:  
 
Action Being Requested: A variance from the City’s Zoning Ordinance, Chapter 155, 
Nonconforming Regulations (article 4) and Residential District Setbacks (Article 9).  
 
60-Day Rule: The application was filed on September 19, 2016; therefore the City must take 
action on or before November 17, 2016.  
 
Public Hearing: Required: Yes; Notification: A total of 44 surrounding property owners within 
350 feet of the subject property were notified.  The Notice of Public Hearing was published in 
The Lake City Graphic on September 22, 2016. 
 
PLANNING AND ZONING REVIEW: 
 
Land Use: Residential 



2 

 
Zoning:  (TN) Traditional Neighborhood  
     
Surrounding Land Uses: Nearby properties including primarily single family homes, with some 
duplex, triplex, and rental units, including vacation rentals.     
 
EXISTING CONDITIONS: 
 
The existing home was built in the 1940’s and has not been expanded since.  The setback 
dimensions are as follows: 
 

Current Distance Required Distance Proposed Distance 
from prop. line (min. setback)  from prop. line 

Front:   15’   20’   8’ 
North Side:  5’   8’   5’ 
South Side:  13’   8’   13’ 
Rear:    20’   20’   20’ 
 
VARIANCE ANALYSIS AND FINDINGS: 
 
The City’s variance requirements state that each of the five (5) criteria listed below must be met 
for a variance to be granted.  Due to the fact that this variance is two part, each request will 
have its own findings.  The staff recommended findings for each request are outlined below:  
 
Part One: expansion of a Non-Conforming Structure:  
 

1. Practical Difficulty.  True or False: Is the property owner proposing to use the property 
in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control?   
 
True: The applicants are proposing to use the property in a reasonable manner by 
expanding the home by adding a second story.  It would be impractical to move the 
building to meet current setback requirements.   
 

2. Unique circumstances.   True or False: Is the plight of the landowner due to 
circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner? 

 
True: Unique circumstances exist because the house was made non-conforming by the 
City changing its setback regulations over the years and re-zoning of the area from a 
higher density to lower density neighborhood.     

 
 



3 

3. Essential Character. True or False: Will the essential character of the locality, or 
neighborhood, be maintained if the variance is granted?  

 
True: The existing home is the only one story home on the block and a second story 
addition will not impact the neighborhood character.   
 

4. Purpose and Intent of the Ordinance.  True or False: If granted, is the variance in 
harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance?  

 
True: The City’s nonconforming regulations aim to allow properties to be maintained, 
but not expanded.  The variance for the expansion is not exacerbating the 
nonconformity, meaning the setbacks will not change the structure’s non-compliance 
status will not change with the addition of the second story.   
 

5. Comprehensive Plan. True or False: If granted, is the variance are consistent with the 
comprehensive plan?  

 
True: The City’s Comprehensive Plan allows for residential land uses in this area.   
 

Part 2: Addition of a second story balcony 

1. Practical Difficulty.  True or False: Is the property owner proposing to use the property 
in a reasonable manner not permitted by an official control?   
 
False: The applicants have not demonstrated that practical difficulty exists since the 
balcony is not an existing part of the home and would be a new addition which would 
exacerbate, or worsen the non-conforming nature of the front setback.  The application 
lacks evidence showing that the balcony was at least considered to be constructed at the 
current setback of the home, or 15 feet.  The entire second floor of this home is being 
added, and the balcony can be integrated into that addition, however the need to 
encroach father into the front yard has not been demonstrated and therefore practical 
difficulty does not exist. 
 

2. Unique circumstances. True or False: Is the plight of the landowner due to 
circumstances unique to the property not created by the landowner? 

 
True: The homeowner did not construct the home in its current location and did not 
create the setback issues.   
 

3. Essential Character. True or False: Will the essential character of the locality, or 
neighborhood, be maintained if the variance is granted?  

 



4 

True: The second story balcony would not detract from the visual character of the 
existing neighborhood. 
 

4. Purpose and Intent of the Ordinance.  True or False: If granted, is the variance in 
harmony with the purpose and intent of the ordinance?  

 
True: The City’s setback regulations are established to allow for a uniform and consistent 
development pattern.  The balcony would be 8 feet from the front property line, which is 
a similar setback to other properties on the same block.  The City allows for homes on 
the same block to follow similar setback patterns.   
 

5. Comprehensive Plan. True or False: If granted, is the variance are consistent with the 
comprehensive plan?  

 
True: The City’s Comprehensive Plan allows for residential land uses in this area.   
 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
 
Staff recommends the Board of Adjustment approve Resolution No. BA16-04, granting variance 
from the City’s non-conforming regulations to allow for the expansion of a non-conforming 
structure in the same footprint that currently exists by adding a second story, and denying the 
request to add a second story balcony that would encroach into the front yard setback area by 
12 feet.   

 















 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. BA16-04 
 

CITY OF LAKE CITY, MINNESOTA 
 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING A VARIANCE FROM THE CITY’S  
NON CONFORMING BUILDING EXPANSION REGULATIONS AND 

DENYING A REQUEST FOR A SECOND STORY BALCONY ENCROACHING 
INTO THE FRONT YARD OF 415 NORTH FRANKLIN STREET,  

LAKE CITY MINNESOTA 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Lake City is a municipal corporation organized and 
existing under the laws of the State of Minnesota; and 

 WHEREAS, Ken and Joyce Willers (the “Applicants”), 1320 North High Street, 
Lake City, MN, have submitted an application to the City of Lake City (the “City”) for a 
variance to expand a non-conforming structure at 415 N Franklin Street by adding a second 
story addition, and building a balcony into the front yard not meeting setback requirements; 
and  

 WHEREAS, the property is legally described as: LOT 2, BLOCK 6, OF THE 
ORIGINAL PLAT OF LAKE CITY, MINNESOTA.   

  WHEREAS, the procedures to apply for, and obtain a variance as found in the 
Lake City Zoning Ordinance Section 155.39 have been met; and 

 WHEREAS, notice has been published, mailed and posted pursuant to the Lake 
City Zoning Ordinance Section 155.39 (D); and 

 WHEREAS, the Lake City Board of Adjustment held a public hearing on said 
matter on October 4, 2016; 

 NOW, THEREFORE, based on the testimony elicited and information received, 
the Board of Adjustment makes the following: 

 
FINDINGS 

 
The City of Lake City has found the following findings in its evaluation of the application 
for a variance:  



 
 

 

A) Request for the expansion of a Non-Conforming Structure:  
 

1. Practical Difficulty.  True: The applicants are proposing to use the property in a 
reasonable manner by expanding the home by adding a second story.  It would be 
impractical to move the building to meet current setback requirements.   
 

2. Unique circumstances.   True: Unique circumstances exist because the house was 
made non-conforming by the City changing its setback regulations over the years 
and re-zoning of the area from a higher density to lower density neighborhood.     

 
3. Essential Character. True: The existing home is the only one story home on the 

block and a second story addition will not impact the neighborhood character.   
 

4. Purpose and Intent of the Ordinance.  True: The City’s nonconforming 
regulations aim to allow properties to be maintained, but not expanded.  The 
variance for the expansion is not exacerbating the nonconformity, meaning the 
setbacks will not change the structure’s non-compliance status will not change 
with the addition of the second story.   
 

5. Comprehensive Plan. True: The City’s Comprehensive Plan allows for residential 
land uses in this area.   
 

B) Request to add second story balcony to be 8 feet from the front property line 

1. Practical Difficulty.  False: The applicants have not demonstrated that practical 
difficulty exists since the balcony is not an existing part of the home and would be 
a new addition which would exacerbate, or worsen the non-conforming nature of 
the front setback.  The application lacks evidence showing that the balcony was at 
least considered to be constructed at the current setback of the home, or 15 feet.  
The entire second floor of this home is being added, and the balcony can be 
integrated into that addition, however the need to encroach father into the front 
yard has not been demonstrated and therefore practical difficulty does not exist. 
 

2. Unique circumstances. True: The homeowner did not construct the home in its 
current location and did not create the setback issues.   
 

3. Essential Character. True: The second story balcony would not detract from the 
visual character of the existing neighborhood. 
 

4. Purpose and Intent of the Ordinance.  True: The City’s setback regulations are 
established to allow for a uniform and consistent development pattern.  The 
balcony would be 8 feet from the front property line, which is a similar setback to 



 
 

other properties on the same block.  The City allows for homes on the same block 
to follow similar setback patterns.   
 

5. Comprehensive Plan.  True: The City’s Comprehensive Plan allows for residential 
land uses in this area.   

 

CONCLUSIONS AND DECISION 

Based on the foregoing, the City of Lake City approves the expansion of a non-conforming 
structure by adding a second story addition to the home at 415 North Franklin Street, not 
exacerbating the setback issues along the front or north side of the property lines, and 
further denies a request to add a second story balcony that protrudes into the front setback 
area by an additional 7 feet from where the home currently exists.   

Passed and duly adopted this 4th day of October, 2016, by the City of Lake City, Minnesota 
Board of Adjustment. 
 
 
        ______________________________ 
 Jerry Hill, Chairperson 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kari Schreck, City Clerk 
 


	ADPD7EE.tmp
	CALL TO ORDER
	REVIEW AND ADOPT/AMEND AGENDA
	APPROVAL OF THE MARCH 2, 2016 STATED MEETING MINUTES
	PUBLIC HEARING – VARIANCE REQUEST SUBMITTED BY HEARTH AND HOME TECHNOLOGIES TO WIDEN AN ACCESS DRIVE, LOCATED ALONG W. MONROE ST. FROM 36 FEET TO 70 FEET, AS MEASURED FROM THE CURB OPENING.
	ADJOURN




